
 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346π2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

February 24, 2016 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

.. 
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA

February 24, 2016 
Regular Session 7:00 PM 

 

 

1) OPEN SESSION________________________________________________________ ____________ 
 
1A. Call Open Session to Order 
1B. Pledge of Allegiance 
1C. Roll Call 
1D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the 
agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 
2) PRESENTATION____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2A. Acceptance of Final Version of Sales Tax Agreement with Winner Chevrolet 
Mark Miller, City Manager and Dave Gard, Winner Chevrolet 
 
2B. Skate Park Update 
Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff Colfax Substation Commander  
 
3) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one 
blanket motion with a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request 
specific items to be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed 
will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
3A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of February 10, 2016 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 10, 2016. 
3B. Cash Summary Report – January 2015 
 Recommendation:  Receive and File 

 
4) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and 
issues discussed at committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be 
made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or 
other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 
 
4A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items π All Councilmembers 
4B. City Operations Update – City staff 
4C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 
 
 







City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

2ÅÓÏÌÕÔÉÏÎ Ο 07-2016 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE AND SALE AND LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH WINNER CHEVROLET 

 
 

WHEREAS, on February 24, 2016, after due and proper public notice and the 
opportunity for all interested parties and members of the public to be heard, the City 
Council of the City of Colfax found and determined by vote of the Council that the Purchase 
And Sale And Lease Agreement (Winner Chevrolet) in the form attached to this Resolution 
is in the best interests of the City of Colfax, 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that 
the City Manager, City Attorney, and City Clerk is authorized to execute on behalf and in the 
name of the City of Colfax the Purchase And Sale And Lease Agreement (Winner Chevrolet) 
in the form attached to this Resolution.. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Colfax held on the 24th day of February, 2016 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

 
 
___________________________________ 

       Tom Parnham, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 2A











160224 - 5 - 

Fiscal Year in its budget for such Fiscal Year and  further shall make the necessary 

appropriations for all such Sales Tax Payment obligations.  City shall furnish to 

Seller copies of the budget prior to final adoption thereof.  The covenants on the 

part of the City contained  in this subsection shall be deemed to be and  shall be 

construed  to be ministerial duties imposed  by law and it shall be the ministerial 

duty of each and  every public official of the City to take such action and  do such 

things as are required  by law in the performance of such official duty of such 

officials to enable the City to carry out and  perform the covenants and 

agreements in this Agreement agreed  to be carried  out and  performed by the 

City. 

 

  e. No failure on the part of City to make the necessary 

appropriations for such Sales Tax Payment obligations shall excuse City of its 

obligations or preclude Seller from exercising its rights and  remedies on  account 

of such failure to pay. 

 

  The obligation of City to make Sales Tax Payments created  under 

this Agreement does not constitute an obligation of City  for which the City is 

obligated  to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the City has levied 

or pledged any form of taxation.  The obligation to make Sales Tax Payments 

does not constitute an indebtedness of the City, the State or any political 

subdivision thereof within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt 

limitation or restriction. 

 

 5. Payment Term.  City shall pay the Purchase Price to Seller from 

Sales Tax Increment over a period  of ten (10) years, unless paid  in full earlier by 

City.  If City has not paid  the Purchase Price in full over ten years to Seller, th is 

Agreement shall be au tomatically extended for up to two (2) five year periods, or 

until City has paid  the Purchase Price in full, whichever is earlier. 

 

 6. Sales Tax Payment Computations.  The source of funds from which 

City shall make Sales Tax Payments to Seller shall be the Cityôs General Fund.  

Sales Tax Payments shall be computed  by the Sales Tax Increment sales tax 

receipts generated  by taxable sales of Winner.  Notwithstanding any provision 

herein to the contrary, in the event that the allocation by the State  to the City, as 

of the date of this Agreement, of a percentage of sales tax revenues generated  in 

the City is changed, revised  or otherwise amended, the City and  the Seller each 

agree to meet in good faith to revise this Agreement to reflect as closely as  

possible the original intent of the parties in entering into this Agreement with 

respect to the allocation of sales tax receipts. 

 

a. Sales Tax Base.  The Base Sales Tax Generation Figure as of 

January 31, 2016 is Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00)  

 

ITEM 2A



160224 - 6 - 

  b. Sales Tax Increment.  Sales Tax Increment is the incremental 

increase in annual sales tax received  by the City from the Dealership and  

resulting from the increase in the Dealershipôs annual taxable sales over the Base 

Sales Tax Generation Figure.  

 

7. City Lease of Sales Property to Seller .  Upon the close of escrow, City shall 

lease the Sale Property to Winner for a period  of fifty (50) years, subject to the 

following: 

(a) As long as the City receives Sales Tax Increment generated  by taxable 

sales by Winner or its affiliated  entities above the $10,000,000 Sales Tax Base, 

Winner shall pay the City $1.00 per year for leasing the Sales Property from the 

City.   

(b) If for any calendar year during the 50-year lease period  the Sales Tax 

Increment received  by the City based  on taxable sales generated  by Winner or its 

affiliated  entities falls below the $10,000,000.00 Sales Tax Base, Winner shall pay 

the City annual rent equal to the market rate rental amount, calculated  by a real 

estate professional agreed  upon by both parties, for the property 

(c) If for a period  of five or more consecutive calendar years during the 50 

year lease period  the City receives Sales Tax Increment generated  by taxable 

sales by Winner or its affiliated  entities below the Sales Tax Increment the City 

would  ord inarily receive as a result of taxable sales by Winner or its affiliates of 

$5,000,000, then either party shall be entitled  to terminate the lease.   After 

expiration of the lease or termination of the lease, the Sales Property may be used  

by City for any use City determines in its sole and  absolute d iscretion, including 

d isposition of the Sales Property by City, provided , however, that Seller shall 

have the right of first refusal to purchase or lease the Sales Property from City at 

fair market value, according to the provisions of paragraph 10. 

 

7. Seller Improvement of Sales Property .  In exchange for Cityôs lease 

of the Sales Property to Winner, ???.  City, by entering into this Agreement, 

hereby provides Winner, upon City acquiring fee title to the Sales Property, a 

right of entry and temporary construction easement to construct the 

Improvements  on, over and  under the Sales Property.  Seller and  Winner shall 

not pledge, hypothecate or otherwise encumber the Sales Property or any interes t 

therein without the Cityôs prior written consent, which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld . 

 

8. Maintenance and  Improvements, Indemnification of City.  (a) For 

so long as Winner leases the Sales Property from City, Winner shall maintain the 

Sales Property and  the Improvements constructed  by Winner thereon.  Upon 

expiration or termination of the lease of the Sales Property by City to Winner, 

City shall become responsible for maintenance of the Sales Property, including 

any Improvements constructed  by Winner. 

 

ITEM 2A



160224 - 7 - 

(b) In exchange for Cityôs lease of the Sales Property to Winner, City, by 

entering into this Agreement, hereby provides Winner, upon City acquiring fee 

title to the Sales Property, a right of entry and  temporary construction easement 

to construct the Improvements on, over and  under the Sales Property. 

 

 (c)  Seller, Winner, and  their successors-in-interest and  assigns, hereby 

agree to, and  shall defend and  hold  City, its elective and  appointive boards, 

commissions, officers, agents, and  employees harmless from any liability for 

damage or claims for damage for personal injury, or bodily injury including 

death, as well as from claims for property damage which may arise from the 

operations of Winner (including maintenance of the Sales Property), or of 

Winnerôs contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees under this 

Agreement, whether such operations be by Winner, or by any of Winnerôs 

contractors or subcontractors, or by any one or more persons d irectly or 

indirectly employed by, or acting as agen t for, Winner or Winnerôs contractors or 

subcontractors, unless such damage or claim arises from the negligence or willful 

misconduct of City.  The foregoing indemnity obligation of Seller and/ or 

Winner, as the case may be, shall not apply to any liability for damage or claims 

for damage with respect to any damage to or use of any public improvements 

after the completion and  acceptance thereof by City.  In addition to the foregoing 

indemnity obligation, Seller and  Winner agree to and  shall defend, indemnify 

and  hold  City, its elective and  appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents 

and  employees harmless from any su its or actions at law or in equity arising out 

of the execution, adoption or implementation of this Agreement, exclusive of any 

such actions brought by Seller and/ or Winner, its successors-in-interest or 

assigns.  City acknowledges hereby that the foregoing liability of Seller shall be 

limited  to its interest in the Sales Property and  that neither Seller or Winner nor 

any of their partners, officers, shareholders, employees, co-trustees or agents 

shall have any personal liability therefore. 

 

9. Right of First Refusal.  After expiration of the lease or termination 

of the lease by Winner or the City, the Sales Property may be used  by City for 

any use City determines in its sole and  absolute d iscretion, including d isposition 

of the Sales Property by City, provided , however, that Seller shall have the right 

of first refusal to purchase or lease the Sales Property from City at fair market 

value, said  fair market value to be determined  by an appraisal conducted  

pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 2 above.  If Seller declines to so 

purchase or lease the Sales Property from City, the City may choose to sell or 

lease the Sales Property to any third  party in the Cityôs sole and  absolute 

discretion.   

 

10. Binding on Successors and  Assigns; Assignment.  This Agreement 

shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and  assigns 

of the respective Parties, including any public agency  successor-in-interest, 

ITEM 2A









160224 - 11 - 

17. Default by Seller.  (a)  If (1) Seller or Winner shall fail to keep any 

terms, covenants or conditions herein for a period  of forty-five (45) days after 

written notice hereof from City to Seller  and  Winner, or (2) Sellerôs interest in the 

Agreement or any part thereof shall be assigned  or transferred  without the prior 

notice of City, except as permitted  under Section 12 hereof either voluntarily or 

by operation of law; or (3) Seller shall file any petition or institute any 

proceedings wherein or whereby Seller asks or seeks or prays to be ad judicated  a 

bankrupt, or to be d ischarged  from any or all of its debts or obligations, or offers 

to Sellerôs creditors to effect a composition or extension of time to pay Sellerôs 

debts, or asks, seeks or prays for a reorganization or to effect a plan of 

reorganization, or for a readjustmen t of Sellerôs debts, or for any similar relief; or 

(4) any such petition or any such proceedings of the same or similar kind  or 

character shall be filed , instituted  or taken against Seller, then, and  in any such 

events Seller shall be deemed to be in defau lt hereunder. 

 

(b)  If Seller should , after notice, fail to remedy any default with all 

reasonable d ispatch, not exceeding thirty (30) days, then City shall have the 

right, at its option, to terminate the Lease and  this Agreement by delivering 

written notice of such termination to Seller, and  thereafter City shall be relieved 

of all obligations hereunder. 

 

18. Attorneys Fees.  In any arbitration or action arising as a 

consequence of or because of any default by a Party under this Agreement, the 

prevailing Party is entitled  to all costs and  expenses, includ ing reasonable 

attorneysô fees and  costs of suit in equity or action at law to enforce the terms and 

conditions of the Agreement.  Proper venue for any arbitration or action 

connected  with this Agreement shall be Placer County. 

 

19. Recordation and  Filing.  This Agreement shall be recorded and  

filed  or shall be caused  to be recorded  and  filed  by the City. 

 

20. Execution; Entire Agreement.  This Agreement may be 

simultaneously executed  in any number of duplicate originals, each of which 

when so executed  shall be deemed to be an original.  This Agreement consists of 

twelve (12) pages and  five (5) exhibits which constitute the entire understanding 

and  agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement integrates all of the terms and  

conditions mentioned  herein or incidental hereto, and  supersedes all 

negotiations or previous agreements between the Parties with respect to all or 

any part of the subject matter hereof. 

 

21. Valid ity.  If any one or more of the terms, provisions, promises, 

covenants or conditions hereof shall to any extent be ad judged invalid , 

unenforceable, void  or voidable for any reason whatsoever by the final decision 

of a court of competent jurisd iction, each and  all of the remaining terms, 

ITEM 2A



160224 - 12 - 

provisions, promises, covenants and  conditions hereof shall not be affected 

thereby and  shall be valid  and  enforceable to the fullest extent permitted  by law. 

  

22. Headings.  Any headings preceding the texts of the several Sections 

hereof shall be solely for convenience of reference and  shall not constitute a part 

hereof, nor shall they affect its meaning, construction or effect. 

 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation, has 

authorized  the execution of this Agreement in duplicate by its City Manger and 

attested  to by its City Clerk under the authority of Resolution No. ____, adopted 

by the Council of the City of Colfax on the ____ day of ____, 2016 and  Seller has 

caused  this agreement to be executed . 

 

 

CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA GARD FAMILY TRUST, DATED 

a municipal corporation   NOVEMBER 14, 1994 

 

By: ___________________________ By: ____________________________ 

       Mark Miller, City Manager   David  C. Gard , Trustee 

 

ATTEST:     By: ____________________________ 

 Stephanie D. Gard , Trustee 

By: ___________________________ 

       Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  WINNER CHEVROLET, 

      a California corporation 

Approved as to form: 

       

By: ___________________________ By: ____________________________ 

      City Attorney David  C. Gard  

              Its:   

ITEM 2A





Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS
User Community

Colfax Skatepark Affected Parcels for Public Outreach

Legend
Affected Parcels

ITEM 2A



City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes February 10, 2016 
 

  

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, February 10, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CONVENE CLOSED SESSION 
 

1A. Mayor Parnham called the meeting to order at 6:00PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, and Stockwin 
1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 

No public comment 
 

Mayor Parnham recused himself from the closed session item to avoid any appearance of conflict 
with the Union.  As a member of the public, he stated that he knows that Council will do the right 
thing.  He cautioned Councilmembers to avoid taking the conflict personally.  Council convened 
closed session at 6:01PM and concluded closed session at 6:38PM. 
 
1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Conference with Labor Negotiators pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Employee Organization:  General Employees and Bargaining Unit Represented by 
Stationary Engineers, Local 39 City’s Representative:  Mark Miller 
 

2 CONVENE OPEN SESSION 
 

2A. Call Open Session to Order:  Mayor Parnham called the Open Session to order at 
7:00PM.  

2B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Councilmember Douglass led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
2C. Report from Closed Session:  City Attorney Cabral stated that there was no reportable 

action from closed session. 
2D. Roll Call:  Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham and Stockwin 
2E. Approval of Agenda 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the City 
Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

 

3 PRESENTATIONS 
 

3A. Solutions for the Bark Beetle Kill 
Steve Garcia, Unit Forester for the CAL FIRE Nevada-Yuba-Placer Unit, gave a presentation 
on the extent of the current and potential damage to local forests from infestation of bark 
beetles.   Due to drought conditions causing stress to trees, trees are not able to fend off 
beetle attacks, so residents can expect a tremendous amount of tree mortality in the next 
few years.  A wet, cold spring could alleviate some of the issues; however, many trees that 
are now looking stressed are actually completely infested.  These trees with half yellow 

1 of 6









City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes February 10, 2016 
 

8 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

8A. Second Reading of Ordinance № 528: An Urgency Ordinance of the City of Colfax 
Amending Colfax Municipal Code Title 17, Chapter 17.162 Prohibiting the 
Cultivation and Delivery of Marijuana and the Operation of Medical Marijuana 
Dispensaries in the City of Colfax, an interim urgency ordinance to be effective until 
the November 8, 2016 Election at which time a measure will be placed on the Ballot 
to determine the will of the people. 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mick Cabral, City Attorney 
RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct A Public Hearing, Discuss, Waive the Second Reading, and 
Adopt Ordinance № 528, an Urgency Ordinance of the City of Colfax Amending Colfax 
Municipal Code Title 17, Chapter 17.162 Prohibiting the Cultivation and Delivery of 
Marijuana and the Operation of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries in the City of Colfax, an 
interim urgency ordinance to be effective until the November 8, 2016 election at which 
time a measure will be placed on the ballot to determine the will of the people. 
 
At 8:37 Mayor Parnham called the meeting back to order. 
At 8:38 Mayor Parnham opened the Public Hearing for Ordinance 528. 
 
City Attorney Cabral informed Council that at the suggestion of Council from the last 
meeting, three items had been fixed:  a typographical error, a clause stating the 
criminality of medical marijuana has been stricken, and a definition of medical marijuana 
delivery has been added.  Staff recommends that Council read by title only and pass the 
proposed ordinance.  Although AB21 has been signed into law removing the March 1 
deadline to pass an ordinance, there are some omissions in AB21 which may not cover 
“small grows”.  This ordinance would ensure that the City will maintain control over 
regulating all cultivation regardless of number of plants.   
City Manager Miller stated staff will develop a comprehensive ordinance with a detailed 
revenue structure.    Staff will schedule workshops to receive public input.  The goal is to 
have a detailed ordinance prepared by June 1st.  This allows plenty of time for review 
before it is due to the County on July 8th to be placed as a measure on the November 
ballot.   
Councilmember Hesch stated that he is pleased with this approach. 
Councilmember Stockwin stated that there is now no urgency to pass this ordinance. 
City Attorney Cabral replied that most of the March 1 deadline has been eliminated but it 
is unclear if the “small grows” will fall under state jurisdiction on March 1 without an 
ordinance.  Staff wants to ensure that the City will continue to have jurisdiction over all 
aspects of medical marijuana by keeping it completely prohibited until a comprehensive 
ordinance can be created.  
City Manager Miller stated that this is a land-use issue involving zoning as well as a tax 
issue.  The City may need to have 2 measures on the ballot. 
Mayor Parnham stated he sees no urgency to pass this ordinance and will not support a 
total ban on growing marijuana.   It will cause those who grow to do so illegally. 
City Manager Miller stated Sergeant Conners has assured him enforcement will not 
change with this ordinance.  
Councilmember Stockwin does not support a total ban on the books until November. 

5 of 6

























2 

 

 
 The Employer contribution rate is set by the actuarial valuation and is based on assumptions and methods 
approved by the Board of Administration upon the recommendation of the Chief Actuary.  Beginning with 
FY2015π2016, CalPERS is collecting employer contributions toward the unfunded liability as dollar amounts 
instead of the prior method of a contribution rate.  This amount is invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year 
and the plan’s normal cost contribution continues to be collected as a percentage of payroll.  The unfunded 
liability portion of the annual contribution is based on paying down the liability over a period of 30 years with a 
discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. 
 

GASB 68 Accounting Valuation 
The General Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for  Pensions  –  An  Amendment  of  GASB  Statement  No.  27  with new pension reporting requirements for 
employers.  Effective with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015; unfunded pension obligations (Net Pension 
Liability) will become a new liability on the Statement  of  Net  Position  within the local government’s basic 
financial statements.  GASB 68 does not change CalPERS or other retirement system policies, contribution rates, 
or cash flow. 
 

The financial reporting measure that is required for the GASB 68 calculations and reporting is typically more 
fiscally conservative and accelerates the recognition of gains and losses over a shorter amortization period than 
the Annual Actuarial Valuation.  As a result, the pension expenses used for financial reporting purposes is likely 
to be larger than measured for contribution/funding purposes, and will likely be more volatile from yearπtoπyear 
as both favorable and unfavorable results flow through the statements on an accelerated basis. 
 

ANALYSIS: 
The attached status report summarizes historical data for the City of Colfax plan compiled from the two reports 
mentioned above and a CalPERS FactsπAtπA Glance report dated January 2016. 
 

Status Report Highlights: 

¶ City unfunded liability is relatively small $36,490 

¶ City Funding ratio is 90% π compared to average public agency funded status of 77.9% 
  
Some options for consideration: 
 

1. The City could pay down the unfunded liability which could decrease future liabilities and therefore 
lower required payments in the future.  The amount of savings in future years would depend on 
actuarial adjustments and actual investment returns of pension assets.  A prepayment of the unfunded 
liability would not preclude the City from ever having an unfunded or overfunded pension liability in the 
future 

2. The City could establish a reserve for Unfunded Pension Liability 
3. The City could continue to finance the Cost of the unfunded liability through the CalPERS required 

annual contribution payments. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends that we continue to finance the Cost of the unfunded liability through the CalPERS required 
annual contribution payments and closely monitor the status of the City Unfunded Pension with an annual 
report and analysis provided to City Council. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. City of Colfax – Defined Benefit Pension Plan/CalPers  Status Report 





1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 24, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager and Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 
PREPARED By: Staff 

DATE: February 17, 2016 

SUBJECT: MidπYear Budget Review – Fiscal Year 2015π2016 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UNπFUNDED AMOUNT: $ FROM FUND: 
 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION:  Review and accept the  Midπ Year Budget Report 
                                                  Review and accept Budget Calendar 

 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
 

The purpose of the MidπYear Budget Review is to take a look at revenues and expenditures during the fiscal 
year and to review with the Council projections for the end of the fiscal year.   
 

This review is based on six months of actual revenues and expenditures (through December 31, 2015) and 
projections for the balance of the fiscal year based on current City activities and programs.  The projection 
reflects revenues and expenditures changes that have occurred since the adoption of the budget and will 
also provide a good starting point for the next budget projection.  A proposed budget calendar for fiscal 
years 2016π2017 and 2017π2018 is also included as part of this report. 
 

ANALYSIS 
 

The attached MidπYear Budget Report provides detail comparison of year end projections to budget by 
fund and department of projected revenues, expenditures, and fund transfers.  
 

There are differences between revenue and expense categories in all funds and departments, but overall 
the difference in Projected Net Change in Fund Balance for total City funds is $47,000 increase.   
 

The increase is primarily in Enterprise Funds.  There have been many changes in the operations of 
Enterprise funds as we have recently transitioned from outside services to inπhouse staff.  Cost savings this 
year are significant as we are building reserves for debt service (required by State Water Board loan and 
USDA grant) and reserves for operations and capital improvements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 of 4







Date Action Comment

Wednesday, February 24, 2016 Mid Year Review 2015π2016
Detailed Analysis of all Revenue and Expenditures during Current fiscal year.   

Council to provide general direction for preparation of fiscal year budget

Wednesday, April 13, 2016 2016π17 and 2017π18 Preliminary Budget 

Analysis and projection of all revenue sources, departmental staff 

requirements and expenditures, Capital Improvements projects, Identification 

of Broad goals π Fund Reserve requirements and targets, identification of 

challenges and opportunities.

Wednesday, May 11, 2016 Council/Public Budget Workshop

Council provides feedback and general direction to staff based on review of 

preliminary budget.  Citizens have an opportunity to address Council and staff 

during this workshop.

Wednesday, June 08, 2016 2014π15 and 2015π16 Adopted Budget Staff incorporates feedback/amendments to budget as directed by Council.

Wednesday, June 22, 2016 Contingency Meeting Last date for adoption of budget

Friday, July 01, 2016 New Fiscal Year Begins

City of Colfax π  Proposed Budget Process  Calendar
Revision Date:  February 24,  2016



 

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 24, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff  

DATE: February 18, 2016 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Medical Marijuana City Council Policy Discussion 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UNπFUNDED AMOUNT:  N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review the general policy areas covering the Operation of Medical Marijuana 
Dispensaries, Cultivation and Delivery of Marijuana the in the City of Colfax.  Provide direction to staff 
regarding an ordinance to be considered in conjunction with the November 8, 2016 election at which 
time a measure will be placed on the ballot to determine the will of the people. 

 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
 
Consistent with Council direction, staff will move quickly to prepare a comprehensive regulatory ordinance 
and fee schedule for the Council to consider. The intent is to have a measure that can be placed on the 
ballot for approval or disapproval by the City’s residents at the November election.  At tonight’s initial 
meeting, staff is requesting preliminary direction from Council on a number of general policy areas that are 
necessary to include in a comprehensive ordinance.   
 
On October 9, 2015, Governor Brown signed the “Medical Marijuana Regulation & Safety Act” (AB 243, AB  
266, and SB 643) (“MMRSA”) into law. The MMRSA became effective January 1, 2016. It creates a state 
licensing and regulatory framework for medical marijuana cultivation and manufacturing of medical 
cannabis products, and for commercial medical cannabis activities including operation of dispensaries, 
distributions, and transporting. The MMRSA also regulates labeling of edible medical marijuana products, 
environmental problems caused by cultivation, and physicians who give excessive marijuana 
recommendations or recommendations without prior examination. 
 
The MMRSA permits cities and counties to regulate or prohibit medical marijuana cultivation or 
manufacturing, or commercial activities such as operation of dispensaries and other distribution facilities 
and activities under local ordinances or to continue regulating these activities in ways consistent with the 
new state law as long as cities and counties require state minimum regulations to be met. Cities still have 
the power to ban or regulate these activities consistent with their communities’ unique needs.  It is of great 
importance to local jurisdiction to have a revenue mechanism in place as the State’s regulations will not 
provide any funding from the State to local jurisdictions to offset the impacts of legislation. 
 

1 of 5



 

2 

 

 
The City needs to move quickly to define the issues and to have adequate time to receive input from the 
community.  We anticipate having a draft ordinance and policy positions to bring back to City Council in 
March to enable adequate outreach for a community responsive public workshop in March or April.  The 
last day for submittal of a ballot measure to the Office of Elections to guarantee placement on the 
November election ballot is July 6, 2016.  To ensure all time requirements are met, staff is recommending 
completion of all discussion by May and finalization of the draft ordinance and ballot measure no later than 
June. 
 
The major areas of policy for which staff is requesting direction are Public Health and Safety, Revenue 
Assurance, Land Use, Marijuana Dispensaries, Marijuana Delivery and Marijuana Cultivation.  Please 
review and advise of recommendations on these or other areas. 
 

1. Public Health and Safety 
Public health and safety is the foremost responsibility of local government and is important to consider 
within all the City’s policy aspects of Marijuana regulations.  The State of California has delineated some 
safety measures into its recently passed legislation; however local jurisdictions must tailor public safety 
requirements to local circumstances.  Many of the safety measures will be implemented with building, fire 
and other permitting processes; however, any proposed ordinance should include general guidelines.  
Some specific health and safety policy areas to discuss are: 
 

a) Vehicle operation in conjunction with delivery and distribution, including driver age, security, etc. 
b) Prohibit sale of products in a form or packaging attractive to children, such as lollipops, candies, 

gummies, or soft drinks. 
c) Prohibit marijuana smoking and/or distribution in public parks, public buildings and public right of 

ways. 
d) Compatibility with State and Placer County Ordinances. 

 
Suggested important safety considerations are included within the other individual policy topics below. 
 

2. Revenue Assurance 
The City of Colfax’s extremely limited budget, staff, and resources require all City administrative, regulatory 
and enforcement costs incurred to be covered by a commensurate fee structure.  Some specific policy 
areas to discuss are: 
 

a) Permits to be required for sale, grow or transport, if provided for in a proposed ordinance 
b) Fees on sales, of up to 50%, have been charged. Informational briefings indicate that a 15, 20 or 

25% fee on sales are supportable 
c) A minimal charge for delivery is recommended to cover the cost of regulation and monitoring.   
d) If cultivation is permitted, a minimal charge per plant is recommended. 

 
3. Land Use 

Land use planning is important to protect property rights, reflect community choices and maintain quality 
of life.  Dispensaries would normally be permitted in Commercial, Professional Office, Industrial or similar 
zoning, and prohibited in residential and near special use areas such as schools, parks, the Historic District 
and libraries.  Some specific policy areas to discuss are: 
 

2 of 5



 

3 

 

a) Designate specific areas of town appropriate for dispensaries, if permitted, such as along Highway 
174, Highway 80 frontage roads, Industrial Zoning. 

b) Regulate zones in which cultivation, if permitted, can occur, such as Agricultural, Single Family 
Residential, etc. 

c) Require a Conditional Use Permit for dispensaries or cultivation if allowed, to be able to protect 
adjacent properties and address potential impacts. 

d) Require adequate lot size to accommodate parking for anticipated vehicle traffic, security needs, 
buffer from potentially conflicting uses and activities. 

e) Prohibit Cultivation on parcels approved for dispensaries. 
f) Limit proximity to schools, parks, libraries, museums and other youth oriented facilities.  Suggested 

distances are 1,000 to 2,500’.   
g) Separation between multiple dispensaries, if permitted.  500’ was suggested. 
h) Ensure dispensary, if permitted, meets appropriate signage and advertising requirements. 

 
4. Marijuana Dispensaries 

Dispensaries, if permitted, are recommended to have appropriate regulation for security, safety and 
revenue assurance. Some specific policy areas to discuss are: 
 

a) Limit number of dispensaries to appropriate amount for Colfax’s population. 
b) Locate in appropriate areas. 
c) Dispensary must have necessary site and building security.   
d) Mobile dispensaries should be prohibited due to the potential difficulty in maintaining security, 

enforcing regulations, traffic impacts in nonπcommercial areas, etc. 
e) Tracking, quality verification, lab certification requirements could defer to State 
f) Manufacturing or processing of concentrates, oils, etc. prohibited on site. 

 
5. Marijuana Delivery  

Marijuana delivery and distribution is substantially covered in State legislation. As mentioned earlier, a 
minimal charge for Delivery is recommended to cover the cost of regulation and monitoring.   
 

a) No sale to, or delivery by, any person under age 21. 
b) A limit on total number of distributors is suggested – one source recommended limiting distributors 

to 1 per 10,000.  With Colfax’s small population, allowing a reasonable number to facilitate 
competition is probably appropriate.  

c) Chain of custody from cultivation to delivery. 
 
Additional specific policy areas of Council interest or concern should be discussed. 
 
6. Marijuana Cultivation 

Marijuana cultivation is prevalent in the Sierra foothills, and there is considerable public agency experience 
to build on.  Some specific policy areas to discuss are: 
 

a) Consider if cultivation is appropriate for outdoor and/or indoor grows. 
b) Limit number of plants, if approved for cultivation, to appropriate amount for Colfax. 
c) Locate in appropriate areas. Limit proximity to schools, parks, libraries, museums and other youth 

oriented facilities. 
d) Outdoor cultivation not recommended for property zoned multiπfamily.   





POLICY AREA COMMENT

1. Public Health and Safety

a)      Vehicle operation in conjunction with delivery and distribution, including driver age, security, etc.

b)      Prohibit sale of products in a form or packaging attractive to children, such as lollipops, candies, gummies, or soft drinks.

c)      Prohibit marijuana smoking and/or distribution in public parks, public buildings and public right of ways.

d)      Compatibility  with State and Placer County Ordinances.

2. Revenue Assurance

a)      Permits to be required for sale, grow or transport, if provided for in a proposed ordinance

b)      Fees on sales, of up to 50%, have been charged. Informational briefings indicate that 15, 20 or 25% fee on sales are supportable

c)      A minimal charge for Delivery is recommended to cover the cost of regulation and monitoring.  

d)      If cultivation is permitted, a minimal charge per plant is recommended.

3. Land Use

a)      Designate specific areas of town appropriate for dispensaries, if permitted, such as along Highway 174, Highway 80 frontage roads, Industrial Zoning.

b)      Regulate zones in which cultivation, if permitted, can occur, such as Agricultural, Single Family Residential, etc.

c)      Require a Conditional Use Permit for dispensaries or cultivation if allowed, to be able to protect adjacent properties and address potential impacts.

d)      Require adequate lot size to accommodate parking for anticipated vehicle traffic, security needs, buffer from potentially conflicting uses and activities.

e)      Prohibit Cultivation on parcels approved for dispensaries.

f)       Limit proximity to schools, parks, libraries, museums and other youth oriented facilities.  Suggested distances are 1,000 to 2,500’.  

g)      Separation between multiple dispensaries, if permitted.  500’ was suggested.

h)      Ensure dispensary, if permitted, meets appropriate signage and advertising requirements.

4. Marijuana Dispensaries

a)      Limit number of dispensaries to appropriate amount for Colfax.

b)      Locate in appropriate areas.

c)      Dispensary must have necessary site and building security.  

d)      Mobile dispensaries should be prohibited due to the potential difficulty in maintaining security, enforcing regulations, traffic impacts in non-commercial areas, etc.

e)      Tracking, quality verification, lab certification required could defer to State

f)       Manufacturing or processing of concentrates, oils, etc. prohibited on site.

5. Marijuana Delivery 

a)      No sale to, or delivery by, any person under age 21.

b)      A limit on total number of distributors is suggested – one source recommended limiting distributors to 1 per 10,000. With Colfax’s small population, allowing a

reasonable number to facilitate competition is probably appropriate. 

c)      Chain of custody from cultivation to delivery.

6. Marijuana Cultivation

a)      Consider if cultivation is appropriate for outdoor and/or indoor grows.

b)      Limit number of plants, if approved for cultivation, to appropriate amount for Colfax.

c)      Locate in appropriate areas. Limit proximity to schools, parks, libraries, museums and other youth oriented facilities.

d)      Outdoor cultivation not recommended for property zoned multi-family.  

e)      Parcels used for cultivation must have necessary site and building security. 

f)       Permit required for cultivation to be legal.  

g)       No odor or noise Impacts permitted beyond property lines.

h)       Conditional Use Permit is recommended.

i)      Manufacturing or processing of concentrates, oils, etc. prohibited on site.


	00A 160224 Agenda
	Acceptance of Final Version of Sales Tax Agreement with Winner Chevrolet
	02A Winner Chevrolet
	160224 SR Sales Tax Agreement Winner Chevrolet
	Resolution 07-2016 Cost Share with Winner Chevrolet
	160224 Winner Chevrolet Agreement

	02B Skate Park Update
	Colfax Skatepark Project
	Affected Parcels Map

	03A160210 Minutes
	03B Cash Summary Report January Web
	160224 SR Cash Summary Jan 2016
	160224 Cash Summary Data

	06A Calpers Unfunded Liability
	2016-02-24 Staff Report CalPERS 
	Unfunded Liability Analysis - 2016

	06B Mid-Year Budget Update
	Staff Report - Mid Year Review Feb 2016
	160224 2015-2016 Preliminary Budget
	Budget Calendar

	06C Medical Marijuana Preliminary Policy Discussion
	2016-02-24 SR Medical Marijuana Policy 
	2016-02-24 MJ Policy Matrix




